Mendon Community Schools Board of Education Regular Meeting Minutes September 23, 2024

I. General Business

A. Call to Order

Board President, Regina Schinker called the meeting to order at 5:30 pm in the Middle/High School library.

B. Roll Call

- Members Present: Roger Cupp, Jesse King, Sonya Moyle, Regina Schinker, DyAnn Steinberger, Bob Stuart, and Norma Switalski.
- Members Absent:
- Administrative Staff Present: Angie Crotser, Bobby Kretschman, Leasa Griffith-Mathews, and Glen Samson
- Others Present:

C. Pledge of Allegiance

D. Approval of Minutes, Bills, Receipts and Financial Report

Steinberger raised a question regarding the projectors and whiteboards, and Griffith-Mathews explained that all classrooms received new short-throw projectors that are interactive and touch screen which required some new whiteboards. Stuart raised a question regarding the Financial Report which shows that we have already overspent by \$529,028. Griffith-Mathews stated that we do not receive a state aid payment for the first few months. She indicated that the revenue so far is only showing approximately \$12,000. Steinberger also stated that the report is through August 31st, so there should be an increase in revenue in the coming months.

Motion was made by Stuart and supported by Moyle to approve the Board Minutes for August 19, 2024, as well as the Bills, Receipts, and Financial Report as presented.

Motion Carried: 7 ayes; 0 nays, 0 absent

II. Communication

- A. Oral
- A. Written

B. Board Communication

I. Consent Agenda

Approval of

- A. Girls Volleyball
 - a. JV Volunteer Tiffany Howe
- B. Football
 - a. Jr. High Volunteer Travis Allen
- C. Tenure to begin the given years:
 - a. Megan O'Mara 2018-2019
 - b. Theresa Jennett 2021-2022

- c. Jamie Zechlinski 2023-2024
- d. Mark Batten 2024-2025
- D. Boys Basketball
 - a. Varsity Assistant Volunteer Vic Wilczynski
 - b. JV Head Coach Jeff Lovell
 - c. MS Head Coach Ethan Eldridge
- E. Girls Basketball
 - a. Varsity Assistant Volunteer Morgan Walton

Motion was made by Stuart and supported by King to approve the items on the Consent Agenda.

Motion Carried: 7 ayes; 0 nays; 0 absent

II. Board Reports

A. Athletic Report

Samson reported that the fall sports are all having successful seasons. The volleyball team won the county tournament as well as the silver division of the Harper Creek Tournament. Parents' Nights were announced for Fall Sports as well.

B. Elementary Report

Crotser reported that the student count for September is up 3 students from the last count in May. Crotser went on to discuss the Engaged Learner's Journey as well as the new "Hornet Huddle and Hive Time." All are geared towards a community mindset. Crotser went on to explain that with the new curriculums for ELA and Math, the elementary school has all the tools needed to help our students be successful. Finally, NWEA and Acadience testing is complete. Students will complete a foundational math skills assessment using IXL this week.

C. Middle/High School Report

Kretschman reported that the student count at the MS/HS is down 3 students from the final count in May. He went on to discuss how teachers and students are reviewing the schoolwide expectations. Kretschman also thanked Taylor Griffith for her work in the office. He stated that while she has taken on the duties of his secretary, she is still organizing our NWEA testing and helping with the library duties. Finally, Kretschman informed the Board that Parent Teacher Conferences are at the end of the week and Homecoming is the week of October 11th.

D. Superintendent Report

a. Legislative Update

Griffith-Mathews updated the Board on Senate Bill 911 which would make permanent the MPSER's 5.75% rate reduction for districts and would also eliminate the 3% employee contribution. This passed the Senate 20-16 and now moves to the House this week.

b. Bond Update

Griffith-Mathews shared a sample of the locker room floor with the Board. She updated members on the most recent meetings. The electrical panels may need to be updated to code at the elementary which could be quite costly. Griffith-Mathews also informed the Board that we would be selling bonds within the next month and going out to bid in December. Work on one locker room will begin in March.

c. School of Choice Numbers

Griffith-Mathews shared the past school of choice numbers with the Board and indicated that it would be difficult to put a number or percentage to an increase for the Strategic Plan. She stated that while we should strive to increase our SOC numbers, it should be in the 3-5 year plan.

V. Discussion Items

VI. Action Items

A. Approval of the Resolution Authorizing the Issuance and Delegating the Sale of Bonds

Motion was made by Cupp and supported by Stuart to approve the Resolution Authorizing the Issuance and Delegating the Sale of Bonds. Motion Carried: 7 ayes; 0 nays; 0 absent

VII. Good of the Order

A reminder was given to the Board regarding Homecoming festivities which will begin with the Powder Puff game on Monday, October 11th. In addition, Kretschman stated that some of our students would be traveling to Thurston Woods nursing home in Sturgis to celebrate a type of Homecoming for the patients there.

VIII. Adjournment

Motion was made to adjourn the meeting at 6:10 pm by Switalski and supported by Stuart.

Motion Carried: 7 ayes, 0 nays, 0 absent

Respectfully Submitted by,

Regina Schinker Board President Leasa Griffith-Mathews Superintendent

MENDON COMMUNITY SCHOOLS RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE AND DELEGATING THE SALE OF BONDS AND OTHER MATTERS RELATING THERETO

Mendon Community Schools, St. Joseph and Kalamazoo Counties, Michigan (the "Issuer") A regular meeting of the board of education of the Issuer (the "Board") was held in the Mendon Middle High School Library, within the boundaries of the Issuer, on the 23rd day of September,

2024, at 5:30 0'clock in the p.m. (the "Meeting").

The Meeting was called to order by Regina Schinker, President.

Present: Members Roger Cupp, Jesse King, Sonya Moyle, Regina Schinker, DyAnn Steinberger, Bob Stuart, Norma Switalski

Absent: Members:

The following preamble and resolution were offered by Member Cupp and supported by Member Stuart:

WHEREAS:

- 1. On May 7, 2024, the qualified electors of the Issuer voted in favor of bonding the Issuer for the sum of not to exceed Twenty Million Fifty Thousand Dollars (\$20,050,000), the proceeds to be used for the purpose of erecting, furnishing, and equipping a new bus maintenance facility and additions to school buildings; remodeling, furnishing and refurnishing, and equipping and re-equipping school buildings and athletic facilities; acquiring and installing instructional technology; equipping, preparing, developing, and improving athletic fields and facilities, sidewalks, parking areas, driveways, and sites; and purchasing school buses (the "Project"); and
- 2. Prior to the issuance of bonds, the Issuer must either achieve qualified status 01' secure prior approval of the bonds from the Michigan Department of Treasuty (the "Department of Treasury") pursuant to Act 34, Public Acts of Michigan, 2001, as amended.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

1. The first series of bonds of the Issuer aggregating the principal sum of not to exceed Six Million Nine Hundred ForfrÑive Thousand Dollars (\$6,945,000) be issued for the purpose of paying a part of the cost of the Project. The bonds shall be designated 2024 School Building and Site Bonds, Series I (General Obligation — Unlimited Tax) (the "Bonds").

3. The Bonds shall be dated the date of delivery; shall be numbered consecutively in the direct order of maturity from I upwards; shall be fully registered Bonds as to principal and interest; shall be issued in denominations of \$5,000 or integral multiples thereof; shall bear interest at a rate or rates to be hereafter determined, not less than one percent $(1\ 0/0)$ per annum and not exceeding six percent (6%) per annum, payable on May 1, 2025, or such other date as may be established at the time of sale, and semiannually thereafter on the first day of November and May in each year; and shall mature on May in each year as follows:

<u>Year</u>	<u>Amount</u>	<u>Year</u>	<u>Amount</u>
2029	\$200,000	2047	\$465,000
2040	80,000	2048	485,000
2041	265,000	2049	505,000
2042	380,000	2050	530,000
2043	395,000	2051	555,000
2044	405,000	2052	580,000
2045	425,000	2053	600,000
2046	445,000	2054	630,000

The interest on any one Bond shall be at one rate only, and all Bonds maturing in any one year must carry the same interest rate. No bid will be considered for a price less than 99% or greater than 1 18% of the par value.

The Superintendent or the Business Manager of the Issuer (each an "Authorized Officer") is authorized to adjust the maturity schedule and principal amounts pursuant to the recommendation of the Issuer's financial consultant.

The principal of the Bonds and the interest thereon shall be payable in lawful money of the United States of America at or by a bank or trust company authorized to do business in Michigan (the "Paying Agent" or "Bond Registrar"), or such successor paying agent-bond registrar as may be approved by the Issuer, on each semiannual interest payment date and the date of each principal maturity but only to persons whose names are in the register of the Paying Agent as of the close of business on the 15th day of the month preceding any interest payment date. The Issuer may designate additional co-paying agents/bond registrars within or without the State of Michigan as deemed desirable by the Issuer.

A. Mandatory Redemption Term Bonds.

Bonds maturing in any year are eligible for designation by the original purchaser at the time of sale as serial bonds or term bonds, or both. However, principal maturities designated as term bonds shall be subject to mandatory redemption, in part, by lot, at par and accrued interest on May 1st of the year in which the Bonds are presently scheduled to mature. Each maturity of term Bonds and serial Bonds must carry the same interest rater Any such designation must be made within one (1) hour after the Bond sale.

When term Bonds are purchased by the Issuer and delivered to the Paying Agent for cancellation or are redeemed in a manner other than by mandatory redemption, the principal amount of the term Bonds affected shall be reduced by the principal amount of the Bonds so redeemed or purchased in the order determined by the Issuer.

B. Optional Redemption.

The Bonds shall otherwise be subject to redemption at the option of the Issuer, at the times, in the amounts, manner and at the prices as determined upon sale of the Bonds.

Notice of redemption of any Bond shall be given not less than thirty (30) days and not more than sixty (60) days prior to the date fixed for redemption by mail to the Registered Owner at the registered address shown on the registration books kept by the Paying Agent, Bonds shall be called for redemption in multiples of \$5,000, and Bonds of denominations of more than \$5,000 shall be treated as representing the number of Bonds obtained by dividing the denomination of the Bond by \$5,000, and such Bonds may be redeemed in part. The notice of redemption for Bonds redeemed in part shall state that upon surrender of the Bond to be redeemed a new Bond or Bonds in an aggregate principal amount equal to the unredeemed portion of the Bond surrendered shall be issued to the Registered Owner thereof. No further interest payment on the Bonds or portions of Bonds called for redemption shall accrue after the date fixed for redemption, whether presented for redemption, provided funds are on hand with the Paying Agent to redeem the same.

If less than all of the Bonds of any maturity shall be called for redemption prior to maturity, unless otherwise provided, the particular Bonds or portions of Bonds to be redeemed shall be selected by the Paying Agent, in such manner as the Paying Agent in its discretion may deem proper, in the principal amounts designated by the Issuer. Upon presentation and surrender of such Bonds at the corporate trust office of the Paying Agent, such Bonds shall be paid and

redeemed.

Book Entry. Unless otherwise requested by the initial purchaser, the ownership of 3. one fully registered bond for each maturity, in the aggregate principal amount of such maturity, shall be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of The Depository Trust Company ("DTC'). So long as the Bonds are in the book entry form only, the Paying Agent shall comply with the terms of the Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations to be entered into between the Issuer and DTC, which provisions shall govern registration, notices and payment, among other things, and which provisions are incorporated herein with the same effect as if fully set forth herein. An Authorized Officer is authorized and directed to enter into the Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations with DTC in such form as determined by an Authorized Officer, in consultation with bond counsel, to be necessary and appropriate. In the event the Issuer determines that the continuation of the system of book entry only transfer through DTC (or a successor securities depository) is not in the best interest of the DTC participants, beneficial owners of the Bonds, or the Issuer, the Issuer will notify the Paying Agent, whereupon the Paying Agent will notify DTC of the availability through DTC of the bond certificates. In such event, the Issuer shall issue and the Paying Agent shall transfer and exchange Bonds as requested by DTC of like principal amount, series and maturity, in authorized denominations to the identifiable beneficial owners in replacement of the beneficial interest of such beneficial owners in the Bonds, as provided herein.

So long as the book-entry-only system remains in effect, in the event of a partial redemption the Paying Agent will give notice to Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, only, and only Cede & Co. will be deemed to be a holder of the Bonds. DTC is expected to reduce the credit balances of the applicable DTC Participants in respect of the Bonds and in turn the DTC Participants are expected to select those Beneficial Owners whose ownership interests are to be extinguished or reduced by such partial redemptions, each by such method as DTC or such DTC Participants, as the case may be, deems fair and appropriate in its sole discretion.

4. In the event the Bonds are no longer in book entry form only, the following provisions would apply to the Bonds:

Any Bond may be transferred upon the books required to be kept pursuant to this resolution by the person in whose name it is registered, in person or by the registered holder's duly authorized agent, upon surrender of the Bond for cancellation, accompanied by delivery of a duly executed written instrument of transfer in a form approved by the Paying Agent. Whenever any Bond or Bonds shall be surrendered for transfer, the Issuer shall cause a new Bond or Bonds to be executed and the Paying Agent shall authenticate and deliver said Bond or Bonds for like aggregate principal amount. The Paying Agent shall require the payment of any tax or other governmental charge required to be paid with respect to the transfer to be made by the bondholder requesting the transfer.

The Paying Agent shall keep or cause to be kept, at its principal office, sufficient books for the registration and transfer of the Bonds, which shall at all times during normal business hours be open to inspection by the Issuer; and, upon presentation and surrender for such purpose, the Paying Agent shall, under such reasonable regulations as it may prescribe, transfer or cause to be transferred on said books, Bonds as herein provided.

5.If any Bond shall become mutilated, the Issuer, at the expense of the bondholder, shall furnish or cause to be furnished, and the Paying Agent shall authenticate and deliver, a new Bond of like tenor in exchange and substitution for the mutilated Bond upon surrender to the Paying Agent of the mutilated Bond. If any Bond issued under this resolution shall be lost,

destroyed or stolen, evidence of the loss, destruction or theft and indemnity may be submitted to the Paying Agent and, if this evidence is satisfactory to both the Paying Agent and the Issuer, an indemnity satisfactory to the Paying Agent and the Issuer shall be given and the Issuer, at the expense of the owner, shall furnish or cause to be furnished, and the Paying Agent shall thereupon authenticate and deliver a new Bond of like tenor and bearing the statement required by Act 354, Public Acts of Michigan, 1972, as amended, being §§ 129.131 to 129.134, inclusive, of the Michigan Compiled Laws, or any applicable law hereafter enacted in lieu of and in substitution of the Bond so lost, destroyed or stolen. If any such Bond shall have matured or shall be about to mature, instead of issuing a substitute Bond, the Paying Agent may pay the same without surrender thereof.

6. The President and Secretary are authorized to manually sign or cause their facsimile signatures to be affixed to the Bonds in conformity with the above specifications and the Treasurer is authorized and directed to have the Paying Agent's authorized signatory manually sign the Bonds and then cause the Bonds to be delivered to the purchaser thereof upon receipt of the purchase price and accrued interest, if any.

Blank Bonds with the manual or facsimile signatures of the President and Secretary affixed thereto, shall, at the direction of bond counsel and as necessary, be delivered to the Paying Agent for safekeeping to be used for registration and transfer of ownership.

- 7. There is hereby created a separate depository account to be kept with a bank located in the State of Michigan and insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, previously approved as an authorized depository of funds of the Issuer, to be designated 2024 SCHOOL BOND DEBT RETIREMENT FUND (the "DEBT RETIREMENT FUND"), all proceeds from taxes levied for the DEBT RETIREMENT FUND shall be deposited as collected into said fund to be used for the purpose of paying the principal and interest on the Bonds as they mature or are redeemed. Upon receipt of the Bond proceeds from the sale of the Bonds, the accrued interest, if any, shall be deposited in the DEBT RETIREMENT FUND. DEBT RETIREMENT FUND monies may be invested as authorized by law.
- 8. Commencing with the 2024 tax levy, there shall be levied upon the tax rolls of the Issuer in each year for the purpose of the DEBT RETIREMENT FUND a sum not less than the amount estimated to be sufficient to pay the principal and interest on the Bonds as such principal and interest fall due, the probable delinquency in collections and funds on hand being taken into consideration in arriving at the estimate. If funds are borrowed from the School Loan Revolving Fund, such funds may be taken into consideration in arriving at the estimated required tax levy. Taxes required to be levied to meet the principal and interest obligations may be without limitation as to rate or amount, as provided by Article IX, Section 6, and Article IX, Section 16, of the Michigan Constitution of 1963.
- 9. There is hereby created a separate account to be designated 2024 CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND, to which the proceeds of the Bond issue are to be credited.
- 10. The Bonds shall be in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit A and made a part of this resolution by reference.
- 11. The Secretary is authorized and ordered to publish notice of sale of the Bonds herein authorized in a publication printed in the English language and circulated in this state,

which carries as a part of its regular service the notices of the sale of municipal bonds/notes and which has been approved by the Department of Treasury, pursuant to Act 34, Public Acts of Michigan, 2001, as amended, as a publication complying with the qualifications provided in said section, which notice of sale shall be in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit B and made a part of this resolution by reference. Upon receipt of express written recommendation of the Issuer's financial consultant, an Authorized Officer is authorized to award the sale of the Bonds, approve the winning bidder and approve the interest rates and final principal amounts of the Bonds in accordance with the notice of sale and subject to the parameters of this resolution. As an alternative to a public sale, an Authorized Officer is authorized to negotiate the sale of the Bonds to a bank or financial institution. In authorizing the negotiated sale of the Bonds, the Board determines that a competitive sale of the Bonds would be prohibitively more expensive than a negotiated sale, and that a negotiated sale would allow flexibility in the timing, sale and structure of the Bonds in response to changing market conditions. Further, an Authorized Officer is authorized to negotiate the sale of the Bonds to the Michigan Finance Authority pursuant to Act 227, Public Acts of Michigan, 1985, as amended; Act 34, Public Acts of Michigan, 2001, as amended; and other applicable statutory provisions, with said Bonds to bear an original issue date, be payable in the amounts and on the dates, bear interest at the rates and be subject to redemption as shall be determined in the resolution awarding Bonds to the Michigan Finance Authority.

- 12. An Authorized Officer, or designee if permitted by law, is authorized to:
 - a. file with the Department of Treasury an application for approval to issue the Bonds* if required, and to pay any applicable fee therefor and, further, within fifteen (15) business days after issuance of the Bonds, file any and all documentation required subsequent to the issuance of the Bonds, together with any statutorily required fee.
 - b. if deemed advisable by the Issuer's financial consultant, request a waiver of the requirement that ratings be obtained from a nationally recognized ratings agency.
 - c. make application for municipal bond insurance if, upon advice of the Issuer's financial consultant, the purchase of municipal bond insurance will be cost effective. The premium for such bond insurance shall be paid by the Issuer from Bond proceeds.
 - d. approve the circulation of a Preliminary Official Statement describing the Bonds.
 - e.execute and deliver the Continuing Disclosure Agreement (the "Agreement") in substantially the same form as set forth in Exhibit C attached hereto, or with such changes therein as the individual executing the Agreement on behalf of the Issuer shall approve, their execution thereof to constitute conclusive evidence of their approval of such changes. When the Agreement is executed and delivered on behalf of the Issuer as herein provided, the Agreement will be binding on the Issuer and the officers, employees and agents of the Issuer, and the officers, employees and agents of the Issuer are authorized, empowered and directed to do all such

acts and things and to execute all such documents as may be necessary to carry out and comply with the provisions of the Agreement as executed, and the Agreement shall constitute, and is made, a part of this resolution, and copies of the Agreement shall be placed in the official records of the Issuer, and shall be available for public inspection at the office of the Issuer. Notwithstanding any other provision of this resolution, the sole remedies for failure to comply with the Agreement shall be the ability of any Bondholder or beneficial owner to take such actions as may be necessary and appropriate, including seeking mandamus or specific performance by court order, to cause the Issuer to comply with its obligations under the Agreement.

- 13. Bids for the Bonds shall be conditioned upon the unqualified approving opinion of Thrun Law Firm, P.C., East Lansing, Michigan, bond counsel, the original of such opinion will be furnished without expense to the purchaser of the Bonds at the delivery thereof. Further, Thrun Law Firm, P.C., has informed this Board that it represents no other party in the issuance of the Bonds.
- 14. The financial consulting firm of Baker Tilly Municipal Advisors, LLC, is appointed as financial consultant to the Issuer with reference to the issuance of the Bonds herein authorized.
- 15. The Issuer shall furnish Bonds ready for execution at its expense. The Bonds will be delivered without expense to the purchaser at a place to be mutually agreed upon with the purchaser. The usual closing documents, including a certificate that no litigation is pending affecting the issuance of the Bonds, will be delivered at the time of the delivery of the Bonds.
- 16. The President or Vice President, the Secretary, the Treasurer, the Superintendent, the Business Manager, and/or all other officers, agents and representatives of the Issuer and each of them shall execute, issue and deliver any certificates, statements, warranties, representations, or documents necessary to effect the purposes of this resolution or the Bonds.
- 17. The officers, agents and employees of the Issuer are authorized to take all other actions necessary and convenient to facilitate the sale and delivery of the Bonds.
- 18. Immediately after the sale of the Bonds, a certified copy of this resolution shall be filed with the Treasurer of the State of Michigan with the Application for Final Qualification of Bonds, which is approved and attached hereto as Exhibit D.
- 19. The Issuer covenants to comply with existing provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), necessary to maintain the exclusion of interest on the Bonds from gross income.
- 20. The Issuer designates the Bonds of this issue as "qualified tax-exempt obligations" for purposes of deduction of interest expense by financial institutions under the provisions of the Code. In making said designation, the Board determines that the reasonably anticipated amount of tax-exempt obligations which will be issued by the Issuer or entities which issue obligations on behalf of the Issuer during calendar year 2024 will not exceed \$10,000,000, excluding only those tax-exempt obligations as permitted by Section 265(b)(3)(C)(ii) of the Code.

- 21. The advance payment for the Project is approved, and monies are authorized to be advanced from monies on hand in the General Fund, which monies will be repaid to the General Fund from the proceeds of the Bonds when received. The Issuer shall reimburse the General Fund not earlier than the date on which the expenses are paid and not later than the later of:
 - the date that is eighteen (18) months after the expenses are paid, or a.
 - the date the Project is placed in service or abandoned, but in no event more b. than three (3) years after the expenses are paid.
- 22. All resolutions and parts of resolutions insofar as they conflict with the provisions of this resolution are hereby rescinded.

Cupp, King, Moyle, Schinker, Steinberger, Ayes: Members Stuart, Switalski

Nays: Members

Resolution declared adopted.

Secretary, Board of Education

The undersigned duly qualified and acting Secretary of the Board of Education of Mendon Community Schools, St. Joseph and Kalamazoo Counties, Michigan, hereby certifies that theforegoing constitutes a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the Board at the Meeting, the original of which is part of the Board's minutes. The undersigned further calcifies that notice of the Meeting was given to the public pursuant to the provisions of the Open Meetings Act (Act 267, Public Acts of Michigan, 1976, as amended).

Umya Moyle

FGH/baf